TIMELINE OF SPICER RUINS “DISCOVERY” AND PURSUIT OF PRESERVATION, 4.4
ACRES WITHIN BOUNDARY OF 1025 COL. LEDYARD HWY, (CLARK FARM) UPPER
SECTION, FORESTED.

Tri Town Trail conceptualized by David Holdridge prior to 2008
2008 Tri Town Trail Master Plan developed with SCCOG $ 5,000 grant from Millstone
2016 first DEEP grant to Town of Ledyard

2019 permission given by Town of Ledyard to begin trail-blazing/trail building for Phase |, on
Town owned property 1087 Col Ledyard Hwy (open space) and two easements

2020 permission given to trail blaze across town owned Clark Farm (by Mayor Allyn, adm
control) The “Clark Farm” is 101 acres farmed by the Clark family for over 100 years. Became
Town-owned property via exchange of property with Mashantucket Tribal Nation (2007)

2020 while blazing trail, “discovery” of remains of well and foundation (oldsters said may be
Spicer)

2021 extensive research done by Karen Parkinson on Spicer family. Community Foundation
grant written and granted for building bridges and archeology research of land records to verify
ruins. Ruins are significantly “undisturbed” and stone walls/foundations undisturbed. Spicer
Homestead dates to approximately 1670. Peter and Mary Spicer, first settlers, are the
ancestors of many Mystic whaling captains (Spicer Marina), founders of Spicer oil, “Parke”
Spicer (Preston’s long -serving selectman) and many Town of Ledyard and Preston early
leaders. The Homestead was occupied for five generations and became over 200 acres. John
and Cyrus each inherited half the farm in 1769; Cyrus sold east half to Isaac Geer in 1788;
John and successors farmed west half for another hundred years. The original dwelling is
referenced as “the mansion” in 1769 will of John (4). Its demise is not known and would need
to be researched in land records.

2022 Completion of contracted archeology research by Sara Holmes, PhD. Verifying that site is
Spicer Homestead settled circa 1670. Study was funded by Community Foundation grant to Tri
Town Trail Association. Report shared with Town officials and copies donated to Bill Library and
Preston Library. Ledyard Rotary granted TTT $ 1,000 for signage and fencing of Homestead.

2022 study shared with State of CT Archeology. “site number” obtained.

2023-present. Continued working relationship with Town officials to develop plan for
preservation, suggesting the Historic District Commission be assigned administrative control
Two site walks conducted with Land Use Commission (2023, 2024), Historic District
Commission agreed to accept administrative control of site

Map of proposed “Spicer Homestead Ruins” constructed with the assistance of Chad Frost.
There are no existing buildings. There is evidence of a dug well, twin cellar pits, corner
foundations of dwelling, extensive stone wall system, foundation of small barn, and large erratic
boulder, known as “Spicer Rock” referenced in Spicer genealogy books. The proposed 4.4
acres is outlined by existing stone walls, the unnamed brook, and the Eversource easement
boundary. There is a wooden crossing (no foundations) of the brook built by Tri Town Trail
volunteers. The crossing is referenced as “Spicer Bridge” and the unnamed brook is referenced
as “Mary Spicer Brook.”



Submitted to Land Use Committee, Sept 9, 2024 by Karen Parkinson, Historic District Comm.



